
401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 
(434) 979-7310 ● info@tjpdc.org email 

The Regional Transit Partnership serves as an official advisory board, created by the City of Charlottesville, Albemarle County and Jaunt, in Partnership with the 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation to provide recommendations to decision-makers on transit-related matters.  
 

Regional Transit Partnership Agenda Page 1 of 2 
 

          
 

AGENDA 
Regional Transit Partnership (RTP) Monthly Meeting 

Thursday, June 27, 2024 @ 4:00 p.m. 
In person at the Water Street Center, 407 E. Water Street, Charlottesville, VA 

 
Item  Time  Description  

1  4:00-4:05 

General Administration 
• Introductions and Announcements (welcome new members)  
• Approval of Agenda* 
• Approval of draft meeting minutes April 25, 2024* 

2  4:05-4:10 
Matters from the Public: limit of 3 minutes per speaker 
   Members of the Public are welcome to provide comments on any public-interest, transit-related 
topic, including the items listed on this agenda – limit three minutes per speaker.  

3  4:10-4:25 CAT FY 2025 Budget (Garland Williams, CAT) 
4  4:25-4:40 Jaunt FY 2025 Budget (Mike Murphy, Jaunt) 

5  4:40-5:25 

CARTA Work Group Update (Ann Wall, Albemarle County & Ben Chambers, City of 
Charlottesville)   

• Draft Bylaws 
 

6  5:25-6:10 

Transit Provider Updates 
• Albemarle County Schools (Jamie Gellner) 
• UTS (Scott Silsdorf) 
• CAT and City of Charlottesville Schools (Garland Williams)  
• Jaunt (Mike Murphy) 
• DRPT (Katy Miller) 

7  6:10-6:25 

Staff Updates 
• Mobility Management—PATH (Lucinda Shannon) 

o Bus field trip 
o Charlottesville Area Alliance Walk Audit 

  5:25-5:30 Other Business (Updates and Reminders) (Supervisor McKeel, Chair) 
8  5:30 Adjourn 

* A vote is expected for this item 
Next Meeting August 22, 2024 (At the Water Street Center) 
 

 
 
Guests can join in person or by using the link below: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81088437906?pwd=N2tOK3lVTnJEZkFIdCtWYXA2VzRwdz09  
Meeting ID: 810 8843 7906 Passcode: 148365 Phone: 301-715-8592 
 

If a committee member needs to participate remotely, please contact Lucinda Shannon at lshannon@tjpdc.org, 413-219-
1748 two days before the meeting to receive a personal meeting link.  
 
  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81088437906?pwd=N2tOK3lVTnJEZkFIdCtWYXA2VzRwdz09
mailto:lshannon@tjpdc.org


401 E. Water St, Charlottesville, VA 22902 www.tjpdc.org 
(434) 979-7310 ● info@tjpdc.org email 

The Regional Transit Partnership serves as an official advisory board, created by the City of Charlottesville, Albemarle County and Jaunt, in Partnership with the 
Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation to provide recommendations to decision-makers on transit-related matters.  
 

Regional Transit Partnership Agenda Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Regional Transit Partnership Members 
 

VOTING MEMBERS & ALTERNATES 
Brian Pinkston, Charlottesville 
Natalie Oschrin, Charlottesville 
Diantha McKeel, Albemarle 
Michael Pruitt, Albemarle 
Katy Miller, Department of Rail and Public Transit 
Randy Parker, Jaunt Rural 
Caetano De Campo Lopes, Jaunt Urban 
Scott Silsdorf, University Transit Service 
Kendall Howell, University Transit Service (alternate) 
NON-VOTING MEMBERS 
Garland Williams, CAT, and Charlottesville Public School Transportation 
Jamie Gellner, Albemarle County Public School Transportation 
Mike Murphy, Jaunt 
Christine Jacobs, Charlottesville-Albemarle Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Ann Wall, Albemarle County Executive Office  
Ben Chambers, Charlottesville Executive Office 
Sara Pennington, Rideshare 
Peter Thompson, Charlottesville Area Alliance 
Vicky Marsh, University of Virginia Hospital 
Peter Krebs, Piedmont Environmental Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TJPDC fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 in all programs and activities. TJPDC provides reasonable accommodations for 
persons who require special assistance to participate in public involvement opportunities. For more information, to request language translation or 
other accommodations, or to obtain a Discrimination Complaint Form, contact Lucinda Shannon at (434) 979-7310, lshannon@tjpdc.org or visit the 
website www.tjpdc.org. 

http://www.tjpdc.org/


 

 

 
 
 

 
Regional Transportation Partnership Meeting 

Draft Minutes, April 25, 2024 
The recording of this meeting can be found at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=qyhPZ-n8ltA 

  
VOTING MEMBERS & ALTERNATES STAFF  
Brian Pinkston, Charlottesville x Christine Jacobs, TJPDC  x 
Natalie Oschrin, Charlottesville x Lucinda Shannon, TJPDC x 
Diantha McKeel, Albemarle x Gretchen Thomas, TJPDC x 
Mike Pruitt, Albemarle x   
Katy Miller, DRPT * x   
Hal Morgan, Jaunt Rural  x   
Lucas Ames, Jaunt Urban     
Kendall Howell, UTS (alternate)    
Scott Silsdorf, UTS x   
NON-VOTING MEMBERS  GUESTS/PUBLIC  
Garland Williams, CAT x Nick Addamo, Kimley Horn * x 
William Shifflett, Alb County PS  Jessica Hersh-Ballering, Albemarle x 
Vicky Marsh, UVA Hospital  Lucas Muller, Kimley Horn * x 
Jen Fleisher, CAA  x   
Sara Pennington, Rideshare x   
Ann Wall, Albemarle x   
Peter Krebs, PEC  x   
Mike Murphy, Jaunt x   
Ben Chambers, City of 
Charlottesville x   

* Remote attendance 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  
The Regional Transportation Partnership Chair, Diantha McKeel, presided and called the meeting to 
order at 4:00 p.m.  
 
Motion/Action: Brian Pinkston moved to allow Katy Miller to join the meeting remotely. Scott Silsdorf 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Diantha McKeel invited those at the meeting to introduce themselves. 
 

2. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (MINUTE 2:30) 
Approval of Agenda 

Motion/Action: Brian Pinkston moved to approve the agenda. Hal Morgan seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously. 



 2 
 

 

Approval of Minutes 

It was noted that the time mark for the video in the minutes are not complete. They will be updated.  

Motion/Action: Hal Morgan moved to approve the March 28, 2024 minutes with the amended video 
times. Mike Pruitt seconded the motion, which passed unanimously with Brian Pinkston abstaining. 

3. MATTERS FROM THE PUBLIC (MINUTE 3:57):  
None. 

 
4. CAT TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC PLAN (TSP) (MINUTE 4:42): 

Garland Willliams Noted that the plan is a requirement for transit agencies in the state. He introduced 
both Lucas Muller and Nick Addamo from Kimley Horn presented the committee with the draft TSP. 
He gave an overview of the work completed to date. He noted that each of the chapters will be 
included in the full draft TSP that will be presented to the public for their input.  
 
Lucas Muller presented greater details of Chapter 3, Planned Improvements. He said there are 40 
service improvements developed (short-, mid- and long-term); service improvements are “fiscally 
constrained” and grouped into one of three timeframes; recommendations cover FY25-FY34; and 
select “unconstrained” projects and additional recommendations subject to future study is also 
included.  
 
He detailed the planned short-term, mid-term and long-term improvements.  
 
There was discussion about whether the route will go to and from the Albemarle County Regional Jail. 
The new route in the short-term improvement plan includes a route that will stop near the jail on 
both sides of the street to allow access into and out of the area.  
 
Mr. Muller covering non-service recommendations including customer experience, fare policy, 
intermodal transfer opportunities. 
 
He continued with Chapter 4, Infrastructure and Implementation Considerations and Chapter 5, 
Financial Considerations. 
 
He noted that CAT anticipates the need to increase local funding support, especially in 2026 and 
beyond, to maintain existing services and implement improvements. The TRIP grant and the Federal 
CARES Act funding will be tapering down in 2025. 
 
Mr. Addamo presented the project schedule and the next steps. They include the TSP stakeholder 
group meeting, publish the draft TSP, have a public comment period in early May (with 4-week public 
review and comment), finalize the TSP document, present it to the City Council for adoption on June 
3, and then submitted to DRPT by June 30.  

 



 3 
 

 

5. TRANSIT PROVIDER UPDATES (MINUTE   
Albemarle County Public Schools – William Shifflett was not at the meeting, so no report was given. 
 
University Transit Services – Scott Silsdorf reported that UTS submitted a request today for 20 
battery-electric buses with a national federal grant. The award will be announced at the end of 
September. He also said they had their annual driver meeting recently. He also said they are kicking 
off ‘Hoos on Demand’ with UTS driver recruitment. The training will begin at the end of May.  
 
CAT – Mr. Williams said CAT is taking the same opportunity as UTS regarding the federal electric bus 
grant, but they have a requirement to have the Transit Strategic Plan (TSP) in place first. They will be 
asking for 2-4 electric vehicles through the grant. If the grant application is successful, that will speed 
up the short-term improvements from the plan.  
 
Mr. Williams also announced the new Senior Project Manager, Bruce White. for CAT. He will begin on 
June 3. Additionally, the new Assistant Director of Operations will also begin on June 3. Diantha 
McKeel asked for more information on the Assistant Director and the NJ Transit Agency. 
 
Charlottesville City Schools – Mr. Williams reported that their budget process is over and there will 
be two additional drivers for next year. He said their marketing coordinator has been working up a 
plan to attract more drivers starting in May.  
 
Jaunt – Mike Murphy reported that Jaunt approved the return of excess capital to the jurisdiction 
starting on July 1. There will be a nominating committee for the board and for the RTP. Jaunt is 
looking at some stop-by-stop data on their fixed routes and see opportunities for refinement. RE: 
electrifications, there will be additional information on what it might look like with 100% 
electrification. They also have a plan for the installation of the infrastructure for EVs. 
 
Mr. Murphy explained the two separate Boards that exist at Jaunt. 
 
DRPT – Katy Miller reported the CCR Improvement Program has been released to the CTB and is now 
available for public comment. She noted that May 8 is the Culpeper District Six-Year Plan public 
hearing at the Water Street Center. She also said that on May 16, DRPT will provide an opportunity 
for public comment in Richmond on the Six-Year Plan.  
 

6. STAFF UPDATES   
Regional Transit Authority (RTA) – Ann Wall reported that she, Ben Chambers, Lucinda Shannon, and 
Christine Jacobs have been working on bylaws for an RTA. She said the bylaws will be brought to the 
RTP at the June meeting. She said budget and high-level conversations about staff were also 
discussed. In May, there will be outreach to the counties in Region 10 about what opportunities exist 
for an RTA. She said they have spent time reviewing the past conversations about the RTA so they are 
not having the same conversations repeatedly. She also said they need to determine the next steps. 
Ben Chambers said they are making good progress on the things they said they need to do. 
 



 4 
 

 

She continued by explaining that the legislation is prescriptive on an RTA. In the early stages, she said 
there is not much variance in what can be done. There needs to be compliance with the current 
legislation.  
 
Ann Wall said there needs to be a discussion about next steps. Christine Jacobs said they will be 
reaching out to CAT and Jaunt to learn their perspectives on forming an RTA.  
 
There will be an update presented at the next meeting in June.  

7. OTHER BUSINESS 

Ms. Jacobs said she would like an update on the Jaunt studies at a future meeting.  

8. ADJOURN 
 
Ms. McKeel adjourned the meeting at 5:11 p.m. 
 
The next meeting is on June 27 at the Water Street Center from 4 – 6 p.m. 
 



BYLAWS OFTHE CHARLOTTESVILLE-ALBEMARLE 
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

Approved: ___________, 20____ 

ARTICLE I 
POWERS AND DUTIES 

The Charlottesville-Albemarle Regional Transit Authority (the "Authority") has all the 
authority, powers, and duties, and is subject to the limitations and restrictions, set forth in 
Chapter 28 of Title 33.2 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended (the "Virginia Code"), as 
such may be amended from time to time (the "Act"). 

ARTICLE II 
MEMBERSHIP 

A. Authority Members. The Authority will initially embrace the City of Charlottesville
and all or such portions of the County of Albemarle as its governing body desires to have
included.  The City of Charlottesville and the County of Albemarle will be the initial members of
the Authority upon adoption of an approving ordinance by each of their respective governing
bodies.

The Counties of Fluvanna, Greene, Louisa, and/or Nelson may join the Authority, and 
the Authority will embrace all of such portions as the governing body of each county desires to 
have covered.  Private nonprofit tourist-driven agencies, higher education facilities of the 
Charlottesville-Albemarle area, and public transportation agencies serving such counties may 
join the Authority.  The governing body of any county, agency, institution, or facility wishing to 
join the Authority and the governing bodies of the localities, agencies, institutions, and facilities 
then members of the Authority may by concurrent ordinance or by agreement provide for the 
joinder of such county, agency, institution, or facility.   

B. Authority Board. The Authority will be governed by a Board of Directors, referred to
as the “Authority Board,” which will consist of the following Directors:

1. Two members of the Albemarle County Board of Supervisors;
2. Two members of the Charlottesville City Council;
3. One member of the governing body of each additional county that joins the
Authority; and
4. Up to four additional directors, who will be non-voting, representing the interests
of such agencies, institutions, and facilities that join the Authority.

C. Designees. If a Director of the Authority described in Article II, section B, subsections
(1)-(3) is unable to attend a meeting of the Authority Board, the Director may designate another
current elected official of such governing body to attend the meeting of the Authority Board.
Such designation will be for the purposes of the one meeting that the Director is unable to attend
and will be submitted in writing or electronically to the Chair of the Authority Board at least
forty-eight (48) hours prior to the affected meeting.



D. Terms of Membership. All Directors of the Authority will serve terms that coincide 
with their terms of office.  Vacancies will be filled in the same manner as the original 
appointments. 
 

ARTICLE III 
OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

 
A. Officers. The Authority Board will annually elect from its voting Directors a Chair and 
Vice Chair. The Authority Board may further elect such other subordinate officers from among 
its Directors as it may from time to time deem appropriate. The election of officers will be 
conducted in accordance with the voting procedures set forth in Article IV, section K. 
 
B. Terms of Office. Officers of the Authority will be elected at the annual organizational 
meeting of the Authority Board, to serve for a term of one year or until a successor is elected, 
unless sooner removed by the Authority Board or the person ceases to be a Director of the 
Authority. All officers are eligible for reelection; provided, however, that no officer may serve 
more than two consecutive two-year terms. Any officer who serves a partial term will not be 
considered as having served a full term for purposes of this limitation. Any vacancy occurring in 
an office will be filled for the unexpired term by the Authority Board at its next regular meeting 
(or at an earlier special meeting called for that purpose) following the occurrence of such 
vacancy. 
 
C. Nominating Committee. At a regular meeting preceding the annual election of 
officers, the Chair will appoint a nominating committee, subject to the approval of the Authority 
Board. At the annual organizational meeting, the nominating committee will submit the name or 
names of one or more persons for the offices of Chair and Vice Chair.  Additional nominations 
may be made by any Director at the annual meeting. 
 
D. Chair. The Chair will preside over all meetings of the Authority Board at which he or 
she is present and will vote and make motions as any other Director. The Chair is responsible for 
the implementation of the actions taken, and policies established by the Authority Board, has all 
of the powers and duties customarily pertaining to the office of Chair, and will perform such 
other duties as may from time to time be established by the Authority Board. 
 
E. Vice Chair. In the event of the absence of the Chair, or the inability of the Chair to 
perform any of the duties of the office or to exercise any of the powers thereof, the Vice Chair 
will perform such duties and possess such powers as are conferred on the Chair, and will perform 
such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to the Vice Chair by the Chair or be 
established by the Authority Board. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
MEETINGS 

 
A. Annual Organizational Meeting. The regular meeting for the month of July will serve 
as the annual organizational meeting for the purpose of electing officers and transacting such 
other business as may come before the meeting. 



 
B. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Authority Board will be held on a periodic 
basis as determined by resolution of the Authority Board, but not less frequently than once per 
quarter, at a place to be determined by the Chair, or at such time and place as the Authority Board 
may determine. 
 
C. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be held when requested by two or more 
Authority Directors. Such request must be in writing, addressed to the Chair, and must specify 
the matter(s) to be considered at the meeting. Upon receipt of such request, the Chair will 
immediately ensure the necessary coordination for a meeting site and time and cause notice to be 
provided to each Director of the Authority to attend the special meeting at the time and place 
specified. Such notice will specify the matter(s) to be considered at the meeting, and will be sent 
by electronic (e.g., e-mail) or telephonic means. Only matter(s) specified in the notice may be 
considered at such special meeting unless all Directors of the Authority are present. 
 
D. Adjourned Meetings. Any regular or special meeting may be adjourned to a date and 
time certain. 
 
E. Public Notice. All meetings of the Authority Board must be preceded by public notice 
given in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (Virginia 
Code § 2.2-3707 et seq.). Notice of all meetings will be published on the Authority's website and 
available in the offices of the Authority. 
 
F. Public Hearing. Public hearings may be held at the direction of the Authority Board and 
unless otherwise specified by the Authority Board or these Bylaws, will be upon notice published 
on the Authority's website and in a newspaper or newspapers having general circulation in the 
geographic area encompassed by the Authority, if required by applicable law. 
 
G. Open Meetings. All Authority Board meetings will be open to the public in accordance 
with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (Virginia Code §2.2-3700 et seq.), provided that 
the Authority Board may meet in closed session for those purposes authorized by and held in 
accordance with the requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. 
 
H. Quorum. A majority of voting Directors of the Authority, or their designees pursuant to 
Article II, section B, constitutes a quorum. Vacancies will not be considered for purposes of a 
quorum. 
 
I. Temporary Absence. No action may be voted upon unless a quorum is present or 
achieved by Directors participating by electronic communication means; provided, however, that 
the temporary absence from the meeting room of Directors (or designees attending pursuant to 
Article II, section B) required to constitute a quorum will not prevent presentations or 
deliberations regarding any matter that may be submitted to a vote. The Chair or any other 
Director may note the absence of a quorum during presentations or deliberations, but a failure to 
note the absence of a quorum during that period will not affect the requirement that a quorum 
exist when any vote is taken. 
 



J. Decisions of the Authority. The Authority Board will act in one of the following ways: 
1. Resolution - The Authority Board may act upon adoption of a resolution. Resolutions 

must be in writing and a copy of any proposed resolution must be provided to all 
Directors of the Authority before the resolution is proposed for adoption. 

2. Motion - The Authority Board may act on an oral motion made by any voting Director 
of the Authority (or a designee attending pursuant to Article II, section B). 

 
K. Voting. Votes may be taken only upon motions made and seconded. All voting will be 
taken by voice or by roll call if requested by any voting Director (or any designee attending 
pursuant to Article II, section B). Each Director is entitled to one vote on matters before the 
Board.  The presence of a quorum and vote of the majority of the Directors present is necessary 
to take any action.  Voting on all questions coming before the Board will be by voice vote and 
will be recorded in the minutes.  Proxy voting is not permitted.   
 
L. Commencement of Meetings. At the times specified for the commencement of regular 
meetings, and at the hour specified for adjourned or special meetings, the Chair will call the 
meeting to order, and will ensure that the presence or absence of Directors (or their designees) is 
noted. A quorum is required for the commencement of any meeting. 
 
M. Agenda. The Chair will prepare an agenda for each meeting. Any Director having 
matters to be considered by the Authority Board will submit them to the Chair for inclusion on an 
appropriate agenda. The agenda for an upcoming meeting will be sent to the Directors prior to 
the meeting date. For regular meetings, the Chair should provide the agenda at least ten (10) days 
in advance. 
 
N. Minutes. Minutes of the meetings of the Authority Board, except closed sessions, will 
be kept as a public record. Proposed minutes will be provided to each Director prior to the 
meeting at which they are subject to approval. 
 
O. Closed Sessions. If a closed session is required at a meeting, consistent with purposes 
permitted by Virginia law, the agenda will specify a time or position on the agenda, generally 
after all public business has concluded, for such a closed session properly called and conducted 
in accordance with Virginia law. When so requested, the Chair may permit a closed session at 
any other time prior to consideration of any agenda item, provided that the purpose of the closed 
session and the procedure used to go into closed session are in accordance with Virginia law. 
 
P. Director participation and meetings conducted by electronic communication 
means. 

1. The Authority Board may authorize Directors to participate in a meeting by electronic 
communication means pursuant to policies adopted by the Authority Board in 
compliance with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and other applicable laws. 

2. The Authority Board may meet by electronic communication means without a quorum 
physically assembled at one location when the Governor has declared a state of 
emergency and in compliance with applicable law, or when otherwise authorized by 
applicable law. Meetings conducted by electronic communication means must comply 



with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act, other applicable laws, and Authority 
policies. 

 
Q. Order in Conduct of Business. 

1. Persons Addressing the Authority. Prior to public comment and public hearings, the 
Authority Board will provide guidelines for length of presentation by individuals and 
group representatives. Persons speaking at a meeting or public hearing must confine 
their remarks to the subject of the meeting or public hearing. Persons addressing the 
Authority Board may furnish the Chair and Directors with a written copy of their 
remarks, at or before the meeting. 

 
2. Reorder by Chair. At the discretion of the Chair, the conduct of business by the 

Authority Board may be reordered to allow earlier consideration of matters about 
which a substantial number of persons desire to address the Authority Board or for 
any other legitimate reason. 

 
3. Recognition. Recognition will be given only by the Chair. No person may address the 

Authority Board without first having been recognized. 
 
4. Questions. Questions by Directors (or their designees) should be reserved insofar as 

possible for the end of a presentation to avoid interrupting the speaker, disrupting the 
time-keeping process, and duplicating ground the speaker may cover. 

 
5. Authority Discussion. Discussion and debate will be conducted following the 

presentation of the item of business pending. No Directors (or designee) may speak to 
the item until recognized by the Chair. 

 
R. Decorum. 

1. Authority Directors. Decorum of Directors (and designees) will be maintained in 
order to expedite the disposition of business. Questions and remarks will be limited to 
those relevant to the pending business. Directors (and designees) will address all 
remarks to the Chair. 

2. Others. Decorum of persons other than Directors will be maintained by the Chair. 
Persons addressing the Authority Board must first be recognized by the Chair and 
must audibly state their name and address, and, if applicable, whom they represent. 
Speakers must limit their remarks to those relevant to the pending items and to 
answering questions. They must address the Authority Board as a whole unless 
answering a question of an individual Director (or designee). Persons whose allotted 
time to speak has expired will be advised by the Chair to conclude, after which such 
person must conclude unless asked to remain to answer questions from the Authority 
Board. The Chair will call the speaker to order if out-of-order remarks are made or 
other indecorous conduct occurs. If such remarks or conduct persists, the Chair will 
rule the speaker out-of-order and direct the speaker to leave. Groups or a person in the 
audience creating an atmosphere detrimental or disturbing to the conduct of the 
meeting will be asked to leave by the Chair. 

 



ARTICLE V 
COMMITTEES 

 
A. Open Meeting Requirement. Authority-appointed committees and subcommittees 
must comply with the open meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. 
 
B. Committees.  

 
C. Finance Committee. 

1. Charge. This committee will be responsible for advising the Authority Board on 
all financial matters and overseeing financial activities undertaken by the 
Authority, including: 

 
a. Reviewing, commenting on, and recommending the annual budget and 

adjustments to the budget, 
 

b. Reviewing annual revenue estimates, 
 

c. Recommending the Authority's financial policies (e.g., investment, 
procurement, risk management and small purchases) and making 
recommendations, 

d. Monitoring the Authority's compliance with fiscal policies and procedures, 
 

£  Reviewing each member's expenditure of funds received through the 
Authority on a quarterly basis, 

 
g. Reviewing financial statements, and 

 
h. Working with the Auditor of Public Accounts or its legally authorized 

representatives in performing the annual audit of financial accounts of the 
Authority. 

 
2 Membership. The Committee will consist of five (5) Members of the Authority 

who will be appointed by the Authority Board. 
 

3. Chair. The Chair and the Vice Chair of the Committee will be elected by the 
Committee. 

4. Quorum and Voting. A quorum will consist of a majority (3) of the Committee 
members. Approval of recommendations will require an affirmative vote of a 
majority of the Members present. 

 
D. Technical Advisory Committee. 

1 Charge. This committee will be responsible for advising the Authority Board on 



all planning, project and program prioritization, selection, and programming 
matters, including: 

a.  Developing and recommending adjustments to the project and program 
eligibility, prioritization, and selection process for the regional allocations 
of funds received through the Authority, 

b. Reviewing recommended projects and programs for funding identified 
through the prioritization process, 

c.  Reviewing to confirm project and program eligibility and recommending 
each locality's plan for expenditure of funds received through the 
Authority. 

2 Membership. The Committee will consist of up to six (6) voting members. Each 
of the member localities embraced by the Authority will appoint one (1) technical 
representative employed by the locality to the Committee. The Virginia 
Department of Rail and Public Transportation (VDRPT) and Virginia Department 
of Transportation (VDOT) VDOT will each appoint one (1) representative to 
serve as a nonvoting member of the Committee. Each member locality, agency, 
and organization may appoint an alternate to the Committee. 

3. Chair. The Chair and the Vice Chair of the Committee will be elected by the 
Committee. 



 
 
 Draft: April 5, 2024 

8 
 

4. Quorum and Voting. A quorum will consist of four (4) of the voting Committee 
members. Approval of recommendations or actions will require an affirmative 
vote of a majority of the Members present. Either Committee members or 
alternates will be considered in determining meeting quorums and voting on actions 
of the Committee. 

5. The Committee will meet as required in the performance of its duties. 
 
E. The Authority Board may establish such special and standing committees as it deems 
necessary for the transaction of its affairs, and ad hoc committees may be established from time 
to time.  Such committees, their purpose and terms, will be established by majority vote of the 
Authority Board.  A majority of the members of a committee constitutes a quorum.  Appointed 
committees must comply with the open meetings requirements of the Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act.   
 

ARTICLE VI 
ADMINISTRATION 

 
A. Executive Director. The Authority may employ or contract with an Executive Director, 
who will have direct authority for the employment, retention, and supervision of all other 
employees of the Authority. Subject to the oversight and authority of the Authority Board, the 
Executive Director will have direct control of the management of the day-to-day administrative 
affairs of the Authority. The Executive Director will propose activities to the Authority Board, 
carry out policies, programs and projects approved by the Authority Board, and be responsible 
for preparing and presenting the annual budget. The Executive Director may not 
contemporaneously serve as a Director of the Authority. 
 
B. Staff. The Authority may employ or contract for such staff as the Authority Board 
determines to be necessary to carry out its duties and responsibilities. Staff of the Authority may 
not contemporaneously serve as a Director of Authority. 
 
C. Execution of Instruments. The Executive Director, on specific authorization by the 
Authority Board, may have the power to sign or countersign in its behalf any agreement or other 
instrument to be executed by the Authority, including checks and vouchers in payment of 
obligations of the Authority. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

FINANCES 
 
A. Allocation of Funds.  To the extent that funds are not provided from the other sources, 
the administrative expenses of the Authority will be allocated among the participating counties, 
city, agencies, institutions, and facilities pursuant to a funding formula duly adopted by the 
Authority Board, and as provided in an annual budget adopted by the Authority Board.   
 
B. Finances and Payments. The monies of the Authority will be deposited in a separate 
bank account or accounts in such banks or trust companies as the Authority Board designates, 



 
 
 Draft: April 5, 2024 

9 
 

and all payments (with the exception of those from petty cash) will be made in the most 
practicable manner as determined by the Authority Board. Checks and drafts must be signed and 
countersigned by the Chair (or, in the Chair's absence, the Vice Chair) and the Executive Director 
(or, in the Executive Director's absence, those authorized from time-to-time by vote of the 
Authority Board or, where the Vice Chair is acting solely as a countersigning party, the Vice 
Chair). 
 
C. Audits. The Commonwealth's Auditor of Public Accounts, or such Auditor’s legally 
authorized representatives, will annually audit the financial accounts of the Authority, at the 
expense of the Authority. 
 
D. Budget and Fiscal Year. The Authority Board will adopt an annual budget for each 
fiscal year, to provide for all of the revenues and the operating, capital, and administrative 
expenses of the Authority for the fiscal year. The fiscal year of the Authority will commence on 
July 1 each year and will terminate on the following June 30. Except in the case of the 
Authority's first fiscal year, the annual budget for a fiscal year will be adopted before each fiscal 
year begins. The Executive Director may administer the administrative budget approved by the 
Authority Board and implement adjustments to the amounts allocated to line items within the 
administrative budget if, after giving effect to those adjustments, the aggregate amount of the 
administrative budget is equal to or less than the then applicable Authority-approved 
administrative budget. 
 
E. Per Diem Payments. The Authority may pay a per diem amount to its Directors for 
their services to the Authority in either: (1) the amount provided in the general appropriations act 
for members of the General Assembly engaged in legislative business between sessions, or (2) a 
lesser amount determined by the Authority Board. Directors of the Authority may be reimbursed 
for all reasonable and necessary expenses in compliance with Virginia Code, if approved by the 
Authority Board.  Funding for the costs of compensation and expenses of the Directors of the 
Authority will be provided by the Authority.   
 
F. Bond of Officers and Others. Prior to taking office or starting contract or 
employment, respectively, the officers of the Authority and such employees as the Authority 
Board so designates, may be required to give bond payable to the Authority conditioned upon the 
faithful discharge of that officer's, contract employee's, or employee's duties, in such amount as 
the Authority Board may require. The premium for each such bond will be paid by the Authority 
and the bond(s) be filed with the Authority. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
ADOPTION AND AMENDMENTS 

 
These Bylaws may be adopted upon presentation at the inaugural organizational meeting 

or any subsequent meeting of the Authority Board. After initial adoption, any proposed 
amendment, repeal, or alteration, in whole or in part, of these Bylaws will be presented in writing 
and read for a first time at a regular meeting of the Authority Board. Such proposal may be 
considered and amended at such meeting, but may not be acted on by the Authority Board until a 
subsequent regular meeting or a special meeting called for that purpose. At such subsequent 



 
 
 Draft: April 5, 2024 

10 
 

meeting, such proposal will be read a second time, and be subject to further consideration and 
amendment germane to the section or sections affected by such proposal, before being acted on 
in accordance with the voting requirements of these Bylaws. 
 

ARTICLE IX 
PROCEDURES 

 
Parliamentary Procedure.  In all matters of parliamentary procedure not specifically 

governed by these Bylaws or otherwise required by law, the current edition of Robert's Rules of 
Order, newly revised, will apply. 




